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addition to the mid-century armories and the Denton Armory, in 1941 Sangston worked with the WPA to design the Maryland Air
National Guard Hanger in Baltimore. (15)

Aside from being an architect, Sangston also served in the Maryland National Guard and the US Army.(16) He entered the
Maryland National Guard in 1934 as a 2nd Lieutenant and served until 1941, rising to the rank of Captain. In that year he entered
the US Army Reserves, retaining his rank as a Captain. After Pearl Harbor, Governor Herbert O’Connor appointed Major
Sangston the inspector of military equipment and facilities. At the conclusion of his active duty service in 1947, Sangston
continued to serve in the reserves through the 1950s, retiring as a Colonel.

Sangston also maintained a membership in the American Institute of Architects (AIA) from 1947 through 1960. He left the
professional organization to join the fledgling Society of American Registered Architects (SARA), founded in 1956. At the time
more cosmopolitan than the AIA, SARA welcomed ali professional architects as members. Sangston was admitted to the
organization as a fellow, meaning he was recognized for “outstanding ability, performance and distinguished dedication to the
profession of architecture and to the Society.”(17) He was elected Second Vice President of the national organization in 1960.
Sangston was also a member of the Maryland Society, Sons of the American Revolution where he served as president from 1960 to
1962.(18) He is credited with establishing the society’s color guard in 1962. In 1982 Sangston endowed a scholarship in his name
at the University of Maryland. The scholarship is awarded annually to one or more students in good standing in the Architecture
Program pursuing a certificate in Historic Preservation and shares the donor’s lifelong interest in Georgian and Colonial Revival
architecture.(19) Sangston died in 1987,

Out of the ten armories that Sangston is credited with designing, only six remain in service to the Maryland National Guard -
Catonsville, Ellicott City, Glen Burnie, Greenbelt (P.G.:67-36), La Plata (CH-548), and Prince Frederick (CT-801). Ellicott City
was the third constructed under the 1947 Armory Loan. The first two armories built were in Oakland and Frostburg. Both of those
facilities are now owned by local governments and operate as community centers. The Denton Armory is also a community
center. Therefore, the Ellicott City Armory is the oldest Sangston designed armory remaining in service to the Maryland National
Guard.

On May 16, 1999, the Ellicott City Armory was renamed in honor of Brigadier General Thomas Benton Baker, who served as
Assistant Adjutant General of the Maryland Army National Guard from 1989 until his retirement in 1997.(20) Baker was
appointed to the National Guard’s highest position by Maryland Governor William Donald Schaefer. He began his 40-year
military career as a private in 1957 and was commissioned a second lieutenant after graduating from officer candidate school in
1960. He transferred from the US Army to the Maryland Army National Guard in 1976. A member of the Boy Scout Council of
Maryland and the World War Il Memorial Commission, Baker died Thursday September 12, 1998.

Evaluation

The Ellicott City Armory is eligible for the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) under Criterion A for its association with
the reorganization of military priorities at the beginning of the Cold War. Research shows that the Ellicott City Armory was
constructed as part of a statewide and nationwide effort to upgrade old and construct new military facilities. The goal of this
campaign was to improve national security and enhance military preparedness. Through the Armory Loan of 1947, the Maryland
National Guard financed the construction of nine new armories across the state between 1948 and 1955. These facilities were all
based upon a design by Department of Public Improvements Principal Architect Laurence Prudy Sangston. The third armory
constructed as part of this building campaign, the Ellicott City Armory is the Maryland National Guard’s first permanent facility in
Howard County. The armory’s location at the intersection of Montgomery Road (MD 103) and Columbia Pike (US 29) was
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Project Name: MD 103 Widening from US 29 to Long Gate Mall
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Image File Name Description of View

HO-1128 2013-08-21 01 View of the north elevation of the Ellicott City National Guard
Armory, looking southwest

HO-1128 2013-08-21 02 Oblique view of the fagade showing the projecting entry, looking
east

HO-1128 2013-08-21 03 Detail view of the entry, looking south

HO-1128 2013-08-21 04 View of the west elevation, looking east

HO-1128 2013-08-21 05 Detail view of the south elevation, looking northeast

HO-1128 2013-08-21 06 View of the east elevation showing the entry to the drill hall,
looking west

HO-1128 2013-08-21 07 View of the interior of the drill hall, looking west.

HO-1128 2013-08-21 08 View of the plaque at the interior of the entry identifying date of
construction, architect, and builder.
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Memo to file
December 8, 2015

From: Casey Pecoraro
Inventory Registrar

Re:  HO-1128
Ellicott City National Guard Armory

The following materials, prepared on an Addendum to Maryland Historical Trust Maryland
Inventory of Historic Properties Form and dated April 21, 2015, supplement the Determination
of Eligibility form prepared in 2013. The Maryland Historical Trust does not have a Maryland
Inventory of Historic Properties Form on file for this resource.
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MD SHA determined the Ellicott City National Guard Armory to be eligible for the National Register of
Historic Places (NRHP) under Criteria A and Cin 2013. The Ellicott City Armory is eligible for the NRHP
under Criterion A for its association with the reorganization of military priorities at the beginning of the
Cold War. MHT concurred with SHA’s eligibility determination on October 21, 2013. In March 2015,
questions arose regarding the age of particular elements of the planned landscape, which is identified as
an element that contributes to the significance of the armory. Additional research was conducted to
identify the age of the existing landscape, examine if the landscape contributes to the significance of the
armory, and determine if this new information impacts the armory’s NRHP eligibility.

Additional research has shown that the trees lining MD 103 along the northern edge of the armory
property were not planted at the time of construction, as originally thought. A comparison of historic
aerial photographs from 1957, 1966 and 1971 with photos and articles from the Ellicott City Times and
State Roads Commission Right-of-Way Plats from 1953, 1965 and 1968 has shown that the curb line of
MD 103 has changed at least twice since the armory was built. The pin oaks along MD 103 were most
likely planted after 1973 when the roadway was widened for the final time or when the parking spaces
were added in the shoulder.'

An article from the September 11, 1952 Ellicott City Times reports, “The front of the building will face on
Montgomery Road, and there will be a parking lot and lawn with a flagpole.”"
from April and November 1953 do not show any trees planted in front of the armory.

Newspaper photographs
" Thus, the trees
currently in place do not replicate an original designed landscape. Attempts to locate the original plans
for the armory through the Maryland State Archives, Maryland Department of General Services and

Maryland Military Department were not successful.

It was also discovered that owing to the availability of funding, the Ellicott City Armory was built in two
different stages. Land for the new armory was purchased for $6000 from Mr. and Mrs. Wakefield. The
original site contained 3 acres and was purchased with a $4000 contribution from Howard County and a
$2000 donation from private citizen Charles E. Miller."” After a year of negotiations, the site selection
committee selected the lot at the junction of Montgomery Pike and Columbia Road in part because the
Prior to

A}

location would “enhance the armory’s addition to Howard County’s architectural beauty.
construction, the cost was estimated not to exceed $140,000.

In an interview for the January 20, 1949 edition of the Ellicott City Times, Major General Milton A.
Reckford, Adjutant General of the Maryland Military Department described the plans for the new Ellicott
City Armory. “The building will be constructed of cinder and concrete block, faced with brick, and will

Prepared by: Jon Schmidt, MD SHA Consultant Date: April 21, 2015
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undoubtedly be set back from the road a sufficient distance to provide for ample parking, if and when

nvi

The first portion of the armory built contained the drill

Vil

the drill hall is used for community meetings.
hall, motor vehicle storage, repair shop, secure storage vaults, and offices.” Today, these elements
comprise the rear of the armory. All of these facilities were within a 60 feet by 144 feet footprint that
paralleled MD 103 at a broad setback.”" Work began in April 1949 by Baltimore-based Piracci
Construction and was scheduled to last 120 days.” The facility was completed on time. As promised at
the beginning of the year by General Reckford, the building was constructed of brick, steel and concrete.
The headline of the August 11 edition of the Ellicott City Times read, “First Section of Armory Ready for
121° Engineers.” As the Maryland National Guard’s first permanent facility in Howard County, the new
armory was stocked with equipment transferred from armories in Pikesville and Laurel, Camp Ritchie
near Emmitsburg and additional items stored temporarily in the Ellicott City Elementary School
gymnasium.” At that time, it was reported that the administrative section of the building would be

added “to the northeast wall of the building in the very near future.

i

The first published photograph of the new armory appeared on the front page of the August 25, 1949
edition of the Ellicott City Times. Opening ceremonies were planned for fall 1949, but do not appear to
have been held until 1953 after the entire armory was completed. Bids for the construction of the
administrative section were opened on April 8, 1952 and construction began later than spring." This
section of the armory took more than one year to complete. At the time the contract was awarded, the

work was to include seventeen garages along the northwest property line.™ These garages were never

erected, but the planned construction explains the large, level field northwest of the armory.

At the time of construction, the administrative section included three lounges, offices for staff,
classrooms, a rifle range and supply room.”™ A wood floor and tile walls were added to the previously
built drill hall and storage building, suggesting the original facility was rudimentary and functional. The
finished structure was two stories high and measured 165 feet by 109 feet, the same dimensions as
today. The armory was completed in July 1953 and fully staffed shortly thereafter. A dedication
ceremony was held November 8, 1953 complete with speeches from Governor Thoedore R. McKeldin
and Major General Milton A. Reckford, Adjutant General of the Maryland National Guard.* The Ellicott
City Times heralded the new armory as one of the first in the nation completed following World War II.
Research has been unable to determine if this claim has merit or is rooted in community pride. Shortly
after the armory was completed additional land was purchased for a proposed expansion that never

came to fruition.
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including regular maintenance and a minor rehabilitation project in 2006 and 2007 to install air
conditioning and new windows, no major alterations or renovations to the Ellicott City Armory have
taken place. As a result the armory possesses excellent historical integrity, but it does not meet current

anti-terrorism security standards.™" As part of evaluating readiness and security needs, in spring 2015

the Maryland Military Department is in the preliminary planning stages of consolidating the armories in

Catonsville and Ellicott City at a new facility to be constructed in Sykesville.*" There are no finite plans
for the proposed project. At this time, the prospects for the continued service of the Ellicott City Armory

are unknown.

‘State Military Department to State Highway Administration. 24 August 1973. Howard County Recorder of Deeds.
Liber 659 Folio 307. www.mdlandrec.net. Accessed 26 March 2015.

! “Armory Here Will Be First Completed.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 112, No. 27: September 11, 1952; Microfilm,
Collection of Pratt Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

" Untitled Photo. Ellicott City Times, Vol 113, No. 5: April 23, 1953; Microfilm, Collection of Pratt Central Library.
Accessed 24 March 2015.

Also, “Governor Will Speak At New Armory Dedication Sunday.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 113, No. 44: November 5,
1953; Microfilm, Collection of the Pratt Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

¥ “$6000 for New Armory.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 109, No 2: January 13, 1949; Microfilm, Collection of the Pratt
Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

¥ Ibid.

Y “rederal Inspector Is High On Praise Of Local Unit.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 109, No. 3: January 20, 1949;
Microfilm, Collection of the Pratt Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

Yi “Construction Of Armory On Montgomery Road Started.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 109, No. 14: April 7, 1949;
Microfilm, Collection of the Pratt Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

T Ibid.
" Ibid.

* “First Section Of Armory Ready For 121% Engineers.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 109, No. 32: August 11, 1949;
Microfilm, Collection of the Pratt Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.
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“ ibid.

xii

Untitled Photo. Ellicott City Times, Vol. 109, No. 34: August 25, 1949; Microfilm, Collection of the Pratt Central
Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

Xl state To Award Contract For Final Work At Armory.” Ellicott City Times, Vol. 112, No. 7 April 3, 2015; Microfilm,
Collection of the Pratt Central Library. Accessed 24 March 2015.

“““Armory Here Will Be First Completed.” Ellicott City Times.

™ “State To Award Contract For Final Work At Armory.” Ellicott City Times.

* “Governor Will Speak At New Armory Dedication Sunday.” Ellicott City Times.
xvil

Terrio, Captain Thomas. April 16, 2015, Telephone Interview.

i “Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene and Maryland State Military Department.” State
Clearinghouse for Intergovernmental Assistance, Inter-agency Work Session at the Springfield Hospital.
Unpublished Notes from Planning Session, February 2, 2015. Sykesville: 2015.
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HO-1128 2013-08-21 OI1.TIF View of the trees along the northern edge of the Ellicott City
National Guard Armory property, looking west.

HO-1128 2013-08-21 O1.TIF View of the trees lining the eastern entrance to the armory,
looking south.

HO-1128 2013-08-21 OI1.TIF View of the trees at either side of the walkway to the central
entry, looking south.
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